
 
 
 

 

R e g u l a r  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a  J u l y  0 6 ,  2 0 2 1       1 | P a g e  

 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

www.penmetparks.org 

 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
July 06, 2021, 6:00 PM 
Sehmel Homestead Park, Volunteer Vern Pavilion (10123 78th Ave NW, Gig Harbor, WA, 98332) 
 

Call to Order 

Commissioner Roll Call: 

 Present Excused Comment 

Amanda Babich, President    

Kurt Grimmer, Clerk    

Maryellen (Missy) Hill    

Steve Nixon    

Laurel Kingsbury    
 

ITEM 1 Approval of Agenda 

ITEM 2 Citizen Comments 

Citizens are afforded an opportunity at each regular and special meeting of the 
Board to offer their comments to the Board. Citizens are limited to a three (3) 
minute time limit and may only speak once during the citizen comment period at 
each meeting. Comments will be included as part of the official record of the 
meeting. Due to the current circumstances surrounding the COVID-19 Pandemic, 
citizens have the option to provide comment via email at admin@penmetparks.org 
up until 5:00 pm on July 5, 2021. Those comments will be read and recorded in the 
meeting. 

ITEM 3 Presentations 

3a. Executive Director's Report 

3b. Maintenance Department Update 

ITEM 4 Consent Agenda 

4a. Approval of Minutes 

06/15/21 Regular Meeting, 06/18/21 Special Meeting, 06/19/20 Special 
Meeting 

4b. Approval of Vouchers 

$1,875.00 Reference Number: 210606001 

$500.00 Reference Number: 210701001 

$57,782.73 Reference Number: 210602001-210602018 

$82,019.62 Reference Number: 210605001-210605040 (Less Vouchers 
210605009 & 210605023) 

1



R e g u l a r  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a  J u l y  0 6 ,  2 0 2 1  2 | P a g e

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org

www.penmetparks.org

ITEM 5 

ITEM 6 

Unfinished Business: None 

New Business 

6a. R2021-014: Resolution Authorizing CRC Phase II Design Contract 

6b. R2021-015: Resolution Authorizing the Transfer of Funds from the 
Sehmel Homestead Park Lighting Project to the Park Improvement 
Fund and Amend the 2021 Capital Budget  

ITEM 7 Project Update 

7a. CRC Marketing Committee 

ITEM 8 Comments by Board 

ITEM 9 Next Board Meetings 
Tuesday, July 20, 2021 (Study and Regular) Study Session at 5:00 and Regular 
Meeting at 6:00 pm at SHP Volunteer Vern Pavilion. 

ITEM 10 Adjournment 

AGENDA POLICY 

No comments or discussion will be allowed on consent items. 

Citizen Comments: Citizens are afforded an opportunity at each regular and special meeting of the Board of Park 
Commissioners to offer their comments to the Board. Citizens are limited to a three (3) minute time limit and may only 
speak once during the Citizen Comment period at each meeting. Comments will be included as part of the official 
record of the meeting. 

Individuals requesting an item to be placed on the agenda must submit a request by 12 noon on the Monday 
preceding the Tuesday meeting date. 

Individuals wishing to submit materials or written testimony to the Board at the meeting must provide ten (10) copies 
at least 15 minutes prior to the start of the meeting. 

*Special Note: Due to current circumstances, citizens may choose to provide comment via email
at ssnuffin@penmetparks.org up until 5:00 pm the Monday prior to PenMet Parks Regular Meetings. Comments will
be read and recorded in the meeting.

2

mailto:ssnuffin@penmetparks.org


 
 
 

 

R e g u l a r  M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  J u n e  1 5 ,  2 0 2 1       1 | P a g e  

 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

www.penmetparks.org 

 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
June 15, 2021, 6:00 PM  
Sehmel Homestead Park, Volunteer Vern Pavilion (10123 78th Ave NW, Gig Harbor, WA, 98332) 
 

Call to Order: The meeting was called to order by President Babich at 6:03 pm 

 

Commissioners Present:    Staff:  

Amanda Babich, President                    Ally Bujacich 

Kurt Grimmer, Clerk     Chuck Cuzzetto  

Maryellen (Missy) Hill     Eric Guenther  

Steve Nixon      Stacie Snuffin 

Laurel Kingsbury     Matthew Kerns 

Outside Staff:     Louise Tieman 

Curt Gimmestad 

 

Entered into Executive Session at 6:37 pm  

Entered back into Regular Session at 7:12 pm        

 

ITEM 1 Approval of Agenda 

Commissioner Grimmer made a motion to approve the agenda, seconded by     
Commissioner Kingsbury. The agenda was approved with a 5-0 vote. 

ITEM 2 Citizen Comments: None 

ITEM 3 Presentations 

3a. Executive Director's Report 

 Executive Director Ally Bujacich gave updates on upcoming events. 

 Bujacich presented court usage data requested by the Board in the June 1, 
2021 board meeting due to public comments made by local pickleball 
players. Discussion ensued.  

 Bujacich gave an update on the Pierce County Conservation Futures Grant 
the PenMet applied for. The Board and staff had a discussion.  

3b. Peninsula School District Update 

 Superintendent Art Jarvis called in to thank PenMet for supporting the 
Peninsula School District over the last three years. Commissioners thanked 
Jarvis and wished him well in his next endeavor.    

3c. Monthly Finance Report 

 Interim HR & Finance Manager Louise Tieman gave the May financial 
report.  

3d. President's Report 

3

Item 4a.



 
 
 

 

R e g u l a r  M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  J u n e  1 5 ,  2 0 2 1       2 | P a g e  

 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

www.penmetparks.org 

 President Babich reported on the board retreat on June 19, 2021, and a 
PenMet property walking tour on June 18, 2021. 

ITEM 4 Consent Agenda 

 Commissioner Grimmer made a motion to approve the consent agenda, 
seconded by Commissioner Nixon. The consent agenda was approved with a 
5-0 vote 

4a. Approval of Minutes 

06/1/21 Study Session and Regular Meeting, 03/4/21 Special Meeting, 
11/20/20 Special Meeting, 10/27/20 Special Meeting,10/13/20 and 9/22 
Public Meetings, 11/10,10/13/20, 9/22/20, 9/02/20 Steering Committee 
Meetings. 

4b. Approval of Vouchers 

$95,811.14  Reference Number: 210403001-210403025 

$75,054.37 Reference Number: 210501001-2010501011 

$139,604.78 Reference Number: 210502001-210502017 

$34,904.50 Reference Number: 210601001- 210601012 

$97,042.50 Reference Number: 210603001 

ITEM 5 Unfinished Business: None 

ITEM 6 New Business: None 

ITEM 7 Project Manager Update 

7a. Community Recreation Center Update 

 Project Manager Curt Gimmestad gave an update on the CRC Phase 2 
design contract. Gimmestad discussed bringing the updated contract for 
approval at the next board meeting on July 6, 2021. 

7b. CRC Operations Committee 

 Executive Director Ally Bujacich reported that the CRC Operations 
Committee met on June 10, 2021, and had discussed the phase 2 design 
contract.  

7c. CRC Marketing Committee 

 Bujacich reported that the CRC Marketing Committee had met on June 9, 
2021, and that the committee was working on putting together an advisory 
committee for the CRC Capital Campaign.  

7d. CRC Finance Committee 

 Bujacich reported that the CRC Finance Committee had not met since the 
last meeting. 

7e. Hale Pass Update 

4

Item 4a.



 
 
 

 

R e g u l a r  M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  J u n e  1 5 ,  2 0 2 1       3 | P a g e  

 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

www.penmetparks.org 

 Project Manager Curt Gimmestad reported that he had met with the 
architectural firm, where they reviewed the scope of work, are working on 
cleaning up the bid documents, and will come back with final design 
concepts.   

ITEM 8 Comments by Board 

 Commissioner Hill requested that she would like to use some of her legislative 
funds to purchase Recreation Technician (Special Populations), Denise Tremblay, 
a new laptop. Hill shared that Tremblay may have additional needs for the program 
providing other commissioners the opportunity to support the program as well.  

ITEM 9 Next Board Meetings 

Saturday, June 19, 2021, Board Retreat at 8:00 am at the SHP Pavilion. Tuesday, 
July 6, 2021 (Study and Regular) Study Session at 5:00 and Regular Meeting at 
6:00 pm at SHP Pavilion.  

ITEM 10 Executive Session to discuss with legal counsel matters relating to litigation 
or potential litigation per RCW 42.30.110(1)(i). 

ITEM 11 Adjournment: President Babich adjourned the meeting at 7:13 pm 

 

APPROVED BY THE BOARD ON: ________________ 

. 

_____________________________  _____________________________ 

President       Clerk 

 

Submitted By: Stacie Snuffin 

 

 

 

5

Item 4a.



 

1 | P a g e  S p e c i a l  M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  J u n e  1 8 ,  2 0 2 1  
 

 

  
SPECIAL MEETING 

MINUTES 
 

3:00 pm 

Friday, June 18, 2021 

PenMet Parks 

Property Tours 

Location: Various PenMet Properties/Starting at Rosedale Park 

COMMISSIONERS 

AMANDA BABICH 

KURT GRIMMER 

STEVE NIXON 

LAUREL KINGSBURY 

MARYELLEN (MISSY) HILL 

Meeting started at 3:00 pm  

 

ITEM 1  Touring Various PenMet Properties 

 Executive Director and Commissioners toured various PenMet Park Properties. 

Meeting ended at 6:00 pm 

 
APPROVED BY THE BOARD ON: ________________ 

 

_____________________________  _____________________________ 

President       Clerk 

 

Submitted By: Stace Snuffin 
  

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

www.penmetparks.org 

6

Item 4a.



 
 
 

 

S p e c i a l  M e e t i n g  -  2 0 2 1  B o a r d  R e t r e a t  M i n u t e s  J u n e  1 9 ,  

2 0 2 1       1 | P a g e  

 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

www.penmetparks.org 

 

SPECIAL MEETING - 2021 BOARD RETREAT MINUTES 
June 19, 2021, 8:00 AM 
Sehmel Homestead Park, Volunteer Vern Pavilion (10123 78th Ave NW, Gig Harbor, WA, 98332) 
 

ITEM 1  Meeting started at 8:00 am 

 

Commissioners Present:    Staff:  

Amanda Babich, President                    Ally Bujacich 

Kurt Grimmer, Clerk       

Maryellen (Missy) Hill      

Steve Nixon       

Laurel Kingsbury      

       

ITEM 2 Board Discussion 

2a. 2022 Goals and Objectives 

 Executive Director Ally Bujacich and the Board discussed 2022 goals and 
objectives.  

2b. 2022 CIP 

 Bujacich and the Board discussed the 2022 CIP.  

2c. Policy Review Schedule 

 Bujacich and the Board discussed the policy review schedule. 

2d. Board Committee Review 

 Bujacich and the Board discussed the board committee structure.. 

2e. Annual Board Calendar 

 Bujacich and the Board discussed the annual board calendar. 

ITEM 3 Adjournment: The meeting ended at 3:47 pm  

 

APPROVED BY THE BOARD ON: ________________ 

 

_____________________________  _____________________________ 

President       Clerk 

 

Submitted By: Stace Snuffin 

7

Item 4a.



 

 

DISTRICT COMMISSION MEMO 
 

To:  District Commission 

 

Through: Ally Bujacich, Executive Director 

 

From:   Curt Gimmestad, Project Manager 

 

Date:  July 6, 2021 

 

Subject: Resolution R2021-014: Approve Phase II Design Agreement for CRC  

 

Background/Analysis 
 

The Phase I design contract work for the planned Community Recreation Center (CRC) project 

began in July 2020 and concluded in May 2021. The Phase II scope of design work includes the 

balance of design, procurement, construction administration, and project closeout. 

 

The Project Manager has negotiated a price with Barker Rinker Seacat Architecture to provide 

Phase II professional design services. The scope of work reflects a complete and well-rounded 

approach to completing the design, procurement, construction, and closeout phases, and supports 

the desired project outcomes. The price and scope for Phase II design services align with 

Washington State’s guidelines for determining architect/engineer fees for public works building 

projects.  

 

PenMet Parks and BRS have mutually agreed on the terms contained in the attached AIA B103 – 

Standard Form of Agreement between Owner and Architect. This contract form has been 

reviewed by the District’s legal counsel. 

 

 

Recommendation 

 
Staff requests that the Board approve Resolution R2021-014, authorizing the Executive Director 
to sign the agreement with BRS for Phase II design services for the Community Recreation 
Center project. 
 
 
 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

www.penmetparks.org 

8

Item 6a.



Policy Implications/Support 

 

1. The District has adopted goals including: 

 Developing and Maintaining High Quality Facilities: To build and maintain high quality 

facilities consistent with community planning.  

 District Funds: To maximize the use of tax revenues by using other resources such as 

grants, user fees, volunteers, and appropriate professional resources. 

 

 

Motion 
 
I move to approve Resolution 2021-014, authorizing the Executive Director to sign the 
agreement, in substantially the form attached, with BRS for Phase II design services for the 
Community Recreation Center project. 
 
 

If you have any questions or comments please contact me at the earliest opportunity at (253) 

446-3424 or via e-mail at curt.gimmestad@absherco.com. 

9

Item 6a.



Resolution R2021-014 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 

RESOLUTION NO. R2021-014 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO SIGN THE AGREEMENT WITH 
BRS FOR PHASE II DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE COMMUNITY RECREATION 

CENTER 

 

 
WHEREAS, RCW 35.61 authorizes and establishes the powers of a metropolitan park 
district including the power to contract for the design of improvements for park and 
recreation use; and 
 
WHEREAS, PenMet Parks wishes to continue the design process for the Community 
Recreation Center; and 
 
WHEREAS, PenMet Parks conducted an A/E procurement process and negotiated a 
price with Barker Rinker Seacat Architecture in accordance with chapter 39.80 RCW; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District’s attorney has reviewed the agreement; NOW THEREFORE BE 
IT 
 
RESOLVED, by the Board of Park Commissioners that the Executive Director be 
authorized to sign the Agreement with Barker Rinker Seacat Architecture, P.C. to provide 
architectural and design services to PenMet Parks for the Community Recreation Center 
for a total compensation that will not exceed ONE MILLION EIGHT HUNDRED EIGHTY-
NINE THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED EIGHT-SIX DOLLARS AND ZERO CENTS 
($1,889,786.00) in substantially the form attached as Exhibit “A”.  
 
The foregoing resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Park 
Commissioners of the Peninsula Metropolitan Park District held on July 6, 2021. 
 
 
       
President 
 

              
Clerk       Attest 

10

Item 6a.



11

Item 6a.



12

Item 6a.



13

Item 6a.



14

Item 6a.



15

Item 6a.



16

Item 6a.



17

Item 6a.



18

Item 6a.



19

Item 6a.



20

Item 6a.



21

Item 6a.



22

Item 6a.



23

Item 6a.



24

Item 6a.



25

Item 6a.



26

Item 6a.



27

Item 6a.



28

Item 6a.



29

Item 6a.



30

Item 6a.



31

Item 6a.



32

Item 6a.



33

Item 6a.



34

Item 6a.



35

Item 6a.



36

Item 6a.



37

Item 6a.



38

Item 6a.



39

Item 6a.



40

Item 6a.



41

Item 6a.



42

Item 6a.



43

Item 6a.



44

Item 6a.



45

Item 6a.



46

Item 6a.



47

Item 6a.



48

Item 6a.



49

Item 6a.



50

Item 6a.



51

Item 6a.



52

Item 6a.



53

Item 6a.



 

DISTRICT COMMISSION MEMO 
 

To:  Board of Park Commissioners 

 

From:  Eric Guenther, Planning & Special Projects Manager 

 

Date:  July 6, 2021 

 

Subject: Resolution R2021-015 Sehmel Homestead Park (SHP) Lighting Project Closeout 

 

Background 

Between June 2018 and April 2021, PenMet Parks conducted a project to add lights to the Sehmel 

Homestead Park Turf Field.  The project also included lighting in the adjacent parking areas and 

added a scoreboard to the Boeing Mariners Care Baseball Field (Field #1).  A January 8, 2021 memo 

provided additional background information. 

RCO Grant 

PenMet submitted a Washington State Recreation and Conservation Office (RCO) grant application 

for funding from the Youth Athletic Facilities (YAF) category for SHP Turf Lights in 2018.  The 

grant amount of up to $350,000 was awarded in 2019 and represented the maximum award for the 

YAF category. 

Parking Lighting and Conservation Easement Amendment 

There are two areas of parking related to this project which were designated for safety lighting. The 

area near the turf field and turf restroom is completely within the active recreation area at SHP and 

permitted.   

The area between the amphitheater and the “T” intersection is primarily within the natural area, and 

is governed by the SHP conservation easement which is managed by the Great Peninsula 

Conservancy (GPC).  PenMet Parks and the GPC have discussed the issues related to the goals of the 

conservation easement and the need for safely lit parking areas, and are currently working to refine 

language and identify concessions that will amend the conservation easement to recognize the goals 

and the needs of both organizations. The conservation easement boundaries at the SHP southern 

meadow are also undergoing adjustment to better align with the grass area of the meadow.  This 

conservation easement amendment will come before the Board at a future meeting. 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

www.penmetparks.org 

54

Item 6b.



Project Schedule 

Summer 2018 Submitted RCO Grant 

Spring 2019 Grant Awarded 

September 2019 KCDA contract for Musco Lighting 

October 2019 Awarded construction contract to MB Electric 

January 2020 KCDA contract for Daktronics Scoreboard 

July 2020 Board approved R2020-011 to accept MB Electric work 

July 2020 Board approved R2020-015 to accept KCDA/Musco Lighting work 

July 2020 Board approved R2020-016 to accept KCDA/Daktronics Scoreboard work 

July 2020 Notice of Completion submitted to Washington State for all three contracts 

October 2020 Received final State release for Retainage 

November 2020 Submitted final billing and report to RCO 

December 2020 Submitted invoicing to HSC and Narrows FC 

December 2020 Received $304,529 from RCO 

January 2021 Received $500 from Narrows FC 

April 2021 Received $5,000 from Harbor Soccer Club 

 

Budget 

A detailed project budget is appended below. In summary, the original estimated budget for the 

project was sourced from PenMet capital funding ($700,000), an RCO grant ($350,000 

reimbursement), and pledged contributions from two private soccer clubs ($32,500 combined). The 

RCO grant is a reimbursement grant, which means PenMet had to pay for the work up front and then 

seek reimbursement, which is why the allocation is higher than the budgeted expenditures.  

The final project cost was $592,809.95, which is less than the estimated amount of $755,106.20. As a 

result of the lower project cost, the final RCO grant amount, which is based on a percentage of actual 

costs, was $304,529.68, and was received on December 10, 2020.  

In 2021 the two soccer clubs, Harbor Soccer Club and Narrows FC, contributed $5,000 and $500, 

respectively, toward the project.  These lower amounts were the result of 1) Narrows FC ceased 

operations and contributed what they could, and 2) Harbor Soccer was told that there was sufficient 

project funding and their contribution was not necessary, but they contributed anyway. 

After the RCO grant reimbursement and the soccer contributions, the project shows $417,219.73 in 

funding surplus. These funds are available to the District’s Capital Fund for use on other projects.   

Recommendation 

Staff recommends that the Board review the material provided on the Sehmel Homestead Park 

Lighting Project closeout and approve Resolution 2021-015 to transfer $417,219.73 from the Sehmel 

Homestead Park Lighting Project to the Park Improvement Fund and amend the 2021 Capital Project 

Budget. 

Motion 
 
I move to approve Resolution 2021-015 to transfer $417,219.73 from the Sehmel Homestead Park 
Lighting Project to the Park Improvement Fund and amend the 2021 Capital Project Budget. 
 

 

Should you have any questions or comments please contact me at the earliest opportunity at  

253-313-5086 or via e-mail at EGuenther@PenMetParks.org. 

  

55

Item 6b.

mailto:EGuenther@PenMetParks.org


 56

Item 6b.



Resolution R2021-015 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 

RESOLUTION NO. R2021-015 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

A RESOLUTION OF PENMET PARKS TO TRANSFER FUNDS FROM THE SEHMEL 
HOMESTEAD PARK LIGHTING PROJECT TO THE PARK IMPROVEMENT FUND 

AND AMEND 2021 CAPITAL PROJECT BUDGET 

 
WHEREAS, the Peninsula Metropolitan Park District (PenMet Parks) Board of Park 
Commissioners may by resolution amend its current year budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the PenMet Parks Board of Park Commissioners has identified monies that remain 
in the Sehmel Homestead Park Lighting Project after project closeout that are available to fund 
other capital projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, the PenMet Parks Comprehensive Financial Management Policy requires a 
resolution of the Board to transfer funds between projects; NOW, THEREFORE BE IT 
 
RESOLVED by the Board of Park Commissioners of the Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
that $417,219.73 from the Sehmel Homestead Park Lighting Project be transferred to the Park 
Improvement Fund and amend the 2021 Capital Project Budget. 
 
The foregoing resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Park Commissioners 
of the Peninsula Metropolitan Park District held on July 6, 2021.  
 
 
 
 

       
President 
 

 

              
Clerk         Attest 
Peninsula Metropolitan Park District Commission 

 

57

Item 6b.


	Top
	Item 4a.	Approval of Minutes
	20210615 Regular Meeting Minutes Draft 
	20210618 Special Meeting PenMet Parks Property Tours Minutes
	20210619 Special Meeting - 2021 Board Retreat Minutes

	Item 6a.	R2021-014: Resolution Authorizing CRC Phase II Design Contract
	BRS CRC Design Agreement Recommendation Memo 4.10.21 AB Comments
	R2021-014 Agreement for CRC Design
	Copy PenMet -- B103-2017 (Community Rec Center) -- 7.1.2021 (002)

	Item 6b.	Sehmel Homestead Park Lighting Project Update - Special Projects
	Memo SHP Lighting 210701
	R2021-015 Transfer of 2021 SHP Lighting Funds to PIP

	Bottom

